SOUTHERN REGION SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE 

RESEARCH AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

Request for Proposals

2012 RESEARCH AND EDUCATION

LARGE SYSTEMS RESEARCH GRANT PROGRAM
PROPOSAL DEADLINE IS 11:59 P.M. EASTERN NOVEMBER 1, 2011 

Project Maximum is $100,000 per year for three years with opportunity for additional three-year renewals.

THIS GRANT IS NOT FOR BEGINNING OR PLANNED RESEARCH PROJECTS.

The Southern Region USDA Program on Sustainable Agriculture Research and Education (SARE) invites Large Systems Research Grant proposals from those teams of researchers who have established long-term systems research programs currently underway in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Puerto Rico, or the US Virgin Islands. Proposals that are not submitted by established large systems programs will not be funded nor reviewed.

Large Systems Research Grants are strictly intended for systems research teams who have successful ongoing long-term systems research programs but need support to accomplish more long-term research goals.  The SSARE support can be up to 3 years.  Additional 3-year grants are possible, pending a review by the S-SARE Administrative Council, as well as the availability of program funding.
Rationale:

At the core of sustainable agriculture research is the application of a systems approach to research that aims to understand how a complex system functions as a whole, often beginning with a conceptual model.  This approach recognizes that agricultural systems are complex and that interaction among components determines characteristics of the system.  Further, because of this complexity, agricultural systems need to be studied intact over the long term.  

One of the challenges in conducting systems research is obtaining sufficient funding to keep the research team and research infrastructure together over the many years needed to obtain useful and meaningful long-term systems research results.  Moreover, as systems research teams analyze and assess results over time, new questions arise that need to be integrated into the long-term systems research protocol and be investigated.  
Because of the long-term, research-oriented approach required for systems research, outcome expectations for the Large Systems Research Grant program have been designed to assure effective, appropriate results. Each proposal should have defined research outcomes that contribute in a specific way to the pool of knowledge about sustainable agriculture and systems design. Specific performance targets that include the adoption of new farm practices are not required for systems research projects. However, achievement-of-knowledge outcomes (such as published research findings) are still required.

Large Systems Research Grants are designed to assure research capacity in addition to gaining a near-term result to a specific research question. They are also designed to improve the opportunities for teams to engage in interdisciplinary activities.  This ongoing process of research design followed by research activities, analysis and redesign does not fit standard short-term modes of funding common in many grant programs.  The Southern Region SARE Program—through its Large Systems Research Grant--hopes to address that funding gap.

SOUTHERN SARE PROGRAM OBJECTIVE

The objective of the SARE program is to enable the full spectrum of farmers and ranchers to move profitably toward production systems compatible with the concept of sustainable agriculture. Specific objectives include:

· Promote good stewardship of the nation's natural resources by providing site specific and profitable sustainable farming and ranching methods that strengthen agricultural competitiveness; satisfy human food and fibre needs; maintain and enhance the quality and productivity of the soil; conserve soil, water, energy, natural resources, and fish and wildlife habitat; protect endangered species; and maintain and improve the quality of surface and groundwater; 

· Protect the health and safety of persons involved in the food/farm system; 

· Enhance the quality of life for farmers/ranchers and society as a whole, in part by increasing income and employment - especially profitable self-employment opportunities in agriculture and rural communities. Specifically, a major goal is to strengthen the family farm system of agriculture, a system characterized by small- and moderate-sized farms that are principally owner operated; 

· Promote crop, livestock, and enterprise diversification and the well-being of animals, and;

· Strengthen rural communities by creating economic conditions, including value-added products that foster locally owned business and employment opportunities. 

IMPORTANT

All the Guidelines, Program Goals and Review Criteria for Submitting a Southern SARE Research And Education Large Systems Research Grant Proposal can be found in this Request for Proposals

Large Systems Research Grant proposals must be submitted only on the SSARE Large Systems Research Grant Proposal On-Line Submission Web Site.  The Web Site address for Large Systems Research Grant On-Line Proposal Submissions is http://www.ciids.org/sare/LargeSystems
The web address can also be found at the end of this call for proposals.  

Use the on-line proposal system to develop and submit your proposal.  Do all of your editing and modifying before you finalize your proposal.  Once your proposal is finalized, it can not be modified.  Also, once the  November 1, 2011 deadline date passes, the on-line system will close and no more proposals—even those in progress that haven’t been finalized—can be submitted.  
Please print your proposal and have it reviewed, if required, by your institution or organization, modify the proposal, if needed, and then perform the on-line submission.  

LARGE SYSTEMS RESEARCH GRANT 

PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS
Below, you can see all the questions you will be asked on the on-line submission web site at http://www.ciids.org/sare/LargeSystems  Once you have read through this call for proposals, click on that site, follow the directions and begin your proposal.

Title Page: 
Title

Principal Investigator Information

Information requested consists of principal investigator name, lead institution name, full address, telephone, email and fax.

Research Team Members and Cooperating Institution Information

Listing of key research team members receiving funding and their institutions.

Institutional Administrative Contact

Institutional Financial Contact

Abstract

500 words maximum
Body of proposal

Describe your ongoing long-term systems research program. 

1.  Should include the major objectives and scientific and applied significance of the on-going systems research program.  Limited to 250 words.
2.  Describe how this on-going program will have direct application to the long term sustainability of farms and/or ranches.  Limited to 250 words.
3.  How will you make sure that program results reach end users? Limited to 250 words.
4. In addition, describe the specific research project(s) that will be undertaken during the period of the grant.  Limited to 250 words.
Provide a timeline of your systems research program for the first three years of this grant. Limited to 250 words.
What have you learned so far from your ongoing long-term systems program? 

A summary of major results to date from your long-term systems program.  Limited to 250 words.
What other questions do you plan to investigate in the coming three years of your long-term systems research program?  Tell us what major research questions you want to answer in your long-term systems program.  Limited to 250 words.
Program Evaluation

1.  What criteria should SSARE use to evaluate your long-term systems program after each specific year of funding?  Limited to 250 words.
How were farmer/rancher cooperators involved in the planning and how are they involved in the design and implementation of the program?   Limited to 250 words.
How long has this systems program been in operation?

This grant is not for recently started, beginning or planned research projects.   Limited to 250 words.

What funding has already been awarded on this program?  Name the funding source, amount and date awarded.  It is a review criterion that the program has a successful funding record.   Limited to 250 words.

Why do you need SSARE Large Systems Research Grant funding? 
1.  Why is it necessary to keep personnel and research infrastructure in place?  Limited to 250 words.2.  What impediments to your program would exist without the SSARE funding?  What would keep you from being successful without this funding?  Limited to 250 words. 
Citations of research papers--published, in press or in preparation—that have come out of the on-going systems research program.  It is a review criterion that research results have already been accomplished.  Limited to 250 words.
Literature Cited

List key cited literature limited to no more than 125 words.

Budget

Fill in an overall budget, with estimated personnel, operating, supply, and equipment costs.  
USDA-NIFA will allow SARE to cover indirect costs. You may include a line item in the proposal budget that requests up to 10 percent of your project's direct costs as a charge for indirect costs.  If your institution has a negotiated rate for indirect costs that is less than 10 percent, SARE must pay the lower rate.  If you do not have a negotiated rate for indirect costs, SARE can’t cover indirect costs.  Indirect cost amounts may need to be adjusted prior to final project budget approval to meet USDA-NIFA requirements and University of Georgia guidelines.  The annual maximum amount allowed for funding on a Large Systems Grant, even if indirect costs are entered, is still $100,000. 

The SSARE Large Systems Research Grant 

On-Line Proposal Submission web site is:

http://www.ciids.org/sare/LargeSystems
HOW YOUR PROPOSAL IS REVIEWED
Large Systems Research Grant Proposal Review

Administrative Council Review

All Large Systems Research Grant proposals will be evaluated by the members of the Administrative Council of Southern SARE who make up the Project Review Committee.  The Project Review Committee is constituted to reflect the composition of the AC.  Specifically, the members are made up of three farmers, one NGO representative, one from 1890 and one from 1862 institutions, one agency representative, one Quality of Life or Agribusiness representative, and one reviewer from the National SARE office.
The SSARE Project Review Committee will focus on the following:

1. Does the proposal describe an established long-term systems program?

2. Does the described program focus on sustainable approaches to solving agricultural problems for farmers and/or ranchers?

3. Does the described program address issues of importance to Southern agriculture?

4. Does the proposal describe a specific research project to be undertaken?

5. Are farmers involved in the planning, design and implementation of the long-term systems research program?
6. Are there already program results as evidenced by publications, etc.?

7. Is there current funding on this program?

8. Suitability of the methods to be employed (if requested during the review process) 
The Project Review Committee of the SSARE Administrative Council (AC) evaluates the proposals.  All deliberations are confidential.  Any feedback provided is restricted to the written comments agreed upon by the AC Project Review committee.  Review feedback will only be provided to the Project Investigator.
Once the SSARE Project Review Committee has selected one or more proposals they feel meet the review criteria, the selected proposals may be sent out to external technical reviewers if necessary.  At this stage, applicants may be required to submit evidence of the suitability of the methods to be employed.  The technical reviewers will review the proposals for technical soundness.
At the February AC meeting, the Project Review Committee recommends to the full AC those proposals to be funded from the entire list of Large Systems Research Grant proposals.  The AC is responsible for ensuring that the selected proposals reflect not only scientific merit but include participants from across states, institutions and stakeholder groups.    The time from submission of a Large Systems Research Grant proposal to announcement of awards is from November to February.
Continued funding for SSARE Large Systems Research Grant recipients will be based on an annual report demonstrating to the SSARE Administrative Council how the previous year’s funding was used and what would be accomplished with the next years funding.

Continued funding of a SSARE Large Systems Research Grant will also be dependent on continued funding of the SARE program at levels that allow this type of funding.

Receiving a Large Systems Research Grant will not disqualify the recipients from competing for other Southern SARE grants.
The Southern-SARE Administrative Council will give considerable weight to reporting records (length of time that reports are overdue, etc.) of previous recipients of SARE contracts or grants when evaluating projects for any future Southern SARE funding.  Grant recipients are encouraged to submit reports in a timely manner, as this will affect Administrative Council decisions.
If you have questions about the appropriateness of your large systems research grant proposal for the Southern SARE Program, please call Jeff Jordan at 770-412-4788.

For general information on sustainable agriculture, please visit the Southern SARE Web site at:  www.southernsare.org and National SARE website at:  www.sare.org
Additional copies of this Call for Proposals may be obtained by visiting the

Southern SARE Website at: http://www.southernsare.uga.edu/or telephone: 770-412-4787

The Web Site address for the Large Systems Research Grant 

Proposal On-line Submissions is http://www.ciids.org/sare/LargeSystems
2012 Large Systems Research Grant Schedule

September 15, 2011

Call for Large Systems Grant Proposals Released
November 1, 2011

Large Systems Research Grant Proposals Due

February, 2012
           Administrative Council Awards Large Systems Research Grants

-2-


